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From: Hutchins, Greg (SAPOL)
Sent: Woednesday, 13 July 2022 8:51 AM
To: Nairn, Matthew (SAPOL)
Subject: FW: Application - Service in cans - Adelaide Oval SMA Limited [ME-ME.FID6836089]

Attachments; Submissions and Response to SAPOL (120722}).pdf

When you have a minute give us a buzz

Chief Inspector Greg Hutchins APM
Officer in Charge
Licensing Enforcement Branch
Roma Mitchell House
£1, 136 North Terrace
ADELAIDE SA 5000
T 08 218 2601
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_ E greg.hutchins@police.sa.gov.au
W www.police.sa.gov.au
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The information confained in this message and any altachmenl ls confidential and may atso be the subject of legal, professional prvilege or
public interest immunity, H you are not the intended recipient, any uso, disclosure or copying of this document and or ifs atlachments is
unaulherised. Pleass adviso us by reply and then delele it from yvour system. Any views o opinions presented are solely those of the author and
do nof nocossarily roprosant thoso of SAPOL,

From: @minterellison.com>

Sent: Wednesday, 13 July 2022 8:09 AM

fo: Johns, Ben {AGD) <Ben.Johns2 @sa.gov.au>

Cc: Hutchins, Greg {SAPOL) <Greg.Hutchins@police.sa.gov.au>; Thomas, Zoe (AGD) <Zoe.Thomas@sa.gov.au>;
AGD:CBS Liquor and Gaming <LiquorAndGaming@sa.gov.au>; Osterstock, Mark (SAPOL)
<Mark.Osterstock@police.sa.gov.au>; Nairn, Matthew (SAPOL) <Matthew.Nairn@poiice.sa.gov.au>; Aiossa,
Antonella {AGD) <Antonella.Alossa@sa.gov.au>; £ @adelaideoval.com.au>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Application - Service in cans - Adelaide Oval SMA Limited {ME-ME.FID6836089]

Dear Mr Johns
This application is listed for hearing before the Commissioner on Tuesday, 26 July 2022 at 2:30pm.
Please see attached further submissions on behalf of the applicant, Adelaide Oval SMA Limited.

At the directions hearing on 27 June 2022, SAPOL was ordered to provide any further submissions by 13 July and the
applicant was ordered to provide any response by 20 July. We understand each party has now complied with that
order,

We therefore respectfully enquire whether the Commissioner wouid have any availability to hear this matter earlier,
potentially in the week commencing, Monday 18 July 20227




| understand that representatives of the applicant and SAPOL have liaised in that regard, and SAPOL would not
object to faciiitating this request (Mr Greg Hutchins is copied to this emai).

Should you have any queries, please do not hesitate {o contact me.

Kind regards
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Fartner

T +61 8 8233 5652
B @minterellison.com

MinterEllison 25 Grenfell Street Adelaide SA 5000

minterellison.com Follow us on Linkedin and Twitter
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION, PLEASE READ

MinterEllison respectfully acknowledges the Traditional Custodians on whose lands we live, work and learn, We offer our respects to Elders
past and present. '

VACCINATED WORKPLACE

MinterEllison is committed to keeping our pecple and communiiies safe and preventing the spread of COVID-19 and its variants, Our offices
are fully vaccinated workplaces. Only fully vaccinated partners and staff, clienis, suppliers, contractors and visitors can meet and work at our
offices. Read more for access procedures.

OTHER MATTERS

This email, including any attachments, is confidential and may be legally privileged (and neither is waived or lost by mistaken delivery), Please
notify us if you have received this email in error and promptly delete it from your system. Any unauthorised use of this email is expressly
prohibited. Our liability in connection with this email (including due to viruses in any attachments) is limited to re-supplying this email and its
attachments. We collect personal information to provide and market our services and for other purposes - please refer to our privacy policy for
more information on how we collect and handle personal information.

Sensitive: Legal



MinterEllison.

12 July 2022

By Email: Ligquor and Gaming Commissioner
liguorandgaming@sa.gov.au

Liguor and Gaming Commissioner
Consumer and Business Services
95 Grenfell Street

ADELAIDE SA 5000

Dear Commissioner

Adelaide Oval — Response to Intervention and Submissions

1, Adelaide Oval SMA Limited (AOSMA) has applied for a variation of a condition to Liquor Licence
57102633 (Licence), in accordance with secticn 70 of the Liquor Licensing Act 1897, to facilitate
service of alcohol in cans {with a 8 manth trial pericd) (Application).

2. Itis important to note that no submission has been received from either the public or Adelaide City

Council in respect to the Application. In addition, Adelaide City Council has confirmed by email dated
21 June 2022 (copy enclosed) that AOSMA will not require any development approval or variation to

an existing approval, and may proceed without the need for any further consent/approval from
Coungcil.

3. A Notice of Intervention dated 16 June 2022 has been lodged by South Australian Police, and
SAPOL has provided a letier from the Police Association of South Australia dated 6 July 2022
(Notice).

4. SAPOL have intervened on the basis of being concerned about public interest, atising from a threat
to public safety that would exist in the event of a public disturbance occurring at Adelaide Oval that
resuits in cans being thrown in public areas and the playing arena.

5. AOSMA acknowledges the importance of maintaining public safety at all times, and the
implerentation of appropriate measures where necessary to protect against threats to public safety.
We respond to the matters contalhed in the Notice and provide additional submissions as follows.

Historic and isolated incidents

6. The Notice refers to two examples where behavioural concerns have cccurred in Australia, one being

an incident at the Sydney Cricket Ground in 1971 and the other an incident at Lang Park (now
Suncorp Stadium) in Brisbane, in 1988.

7. These are historical incidents oceurring 51 and 33 years ago. it is respectfully difficult to see the

relevance of these isolated incidents, other than that concerns with respect to safety have historically

existed due to isolated incidents. No further information or context has been provided regarding the
control measures employed in relation to those incidents at the time {which we suggest are likely to
be nothing similar to today's slandards}.
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In the 1970's and 1980's, the alcohol/venue management plans, framework and arrangements were
significantly different to present day Adelaide Oval. AOSMA is confident that its current safety,
service and monitering arrangements are sufficient to effectively manage any cancerns or risks that
may arise. This is discussed further below.

Appropriate measures

9.

10.

1.

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

AOSMA is of the view that aluminium cans present no greater risk of use as a projectile than that
currently existing from water bottles, soft drink bottles, and plastic cups. In fact, plastic cups can
present a more likely used projectile given the spray effect from throwing a cup. This view is
reinforced by the successful trials of service in cans at cther major sporting grounds in Australia
{discussed further below).

AOSMA already serves alcohol in cans in its corporate, dining, reception and function areas,
including epen corporate boxes which are located in 4 locations within the members and general
admission areas. AOSMA has not experienced any incidents of concern.

Adelaide Oval generally enjoys very geod crowd behaviour for a venue of this capacity and event
type. However, to prevent and manage behavioural incidents, AOSMA currently maintains a
significant presence of security personnel, in conjunction with real time CCTV monitoring, attendance
of SAPOL on gamedays, as well as usual responsible service of alcohol procedures.

AOSMA and SAPOL already work together to ensure that incidents are minimised, and when they do
accur, are managed appropriately. As has always been the case, in the event any issues of crowd
safety or behaviour arise, AOSMA takes immediate and preactive steps to ensure they are effectively
managed. On this basis, AOSMA is confident that its current security arrangements and approach to
responsible service of alcoho! are sufficient to manage any concerns that may arise from
implementation of this application.

However, AOSMA are proposing an initial 6 month trial period in order to address any issues that
may arise before the variation becomes permanent. This will ensure that the service in cans can be
monitored to ensure it is undertaken in a responsible manner, and any incidents arising are
addressed quickly by AOSMA, SAPOL and the Commissioner.

Within the initial six-moenth trial pericd, AOSMA {and SAPOL) will continue to monitor all behavioural
and safety risks and incidents, particularly any associated with the service of alcohol in cans. AOSMA
wili consult with CBS and SAPOL, who are welcome to raise concerns with AOSMA at any time
during the trial. If raised, AOSMA commits to addressing those concerns in co-operation with SAPOL
proactively and in a timely manner.

We emphasise that AOSMA never intends to place its liguor licence at risk, and will not jeopardise its
regulatory compliance record. The security arrangements, and responsible service of alcohol
framework, ensure that Adelaide Oval is a suitable and controlled environment for service in cans.

We reiterate the below benefits arising from service in cans (which may not have been fully
addressed by SAPOL in their intervention and which clearly demonstrates there are in fact benefits
from service of alcohol in cans both with respect to responsible service and crowd management):

a. The service of alcohol in cans provides an improved ability to ensure responsible service
and consumption of alcohol. Cans have a smaller volume than the current plastic cups,
resulting in a reduced quantity of alcohol supplied (and consumed) upon each purchase.

b. The smaller volume of liquid provided will also lead those patrons who are wanting to
consume a large quantity of alcohol to more frequent attendance at service peoints, which
provides a greater opportunity for AOSMA staff and security to identify and manage
patrons who present a potential concern.

c. Inaddition, cans have a reduced ability for quick consumption given their narrower outlet,

Liguor and Gaming Cammissioner | 12 July 2022 " Page?2
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d. The use of cans also allows for a greater all-round patron experience. Cans have less
risk of spillage and are easier {o transport to and from service points to seated areas. It
also allows stadium management to explore further coramercial opportunities with service
providers who produce in cans only.

Victoria Police and sale in cans at other events

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

The Notice includes a response from Victoria Police in relation to concerns raised about the re-
introduction of aluminium cans at Victorian sporting venues.

We understand that the service of alcohol in cans at both the MCG and Marvel Stadium has been
well received and whilst incidents refating fo alcohol have still occurred, these are not attributable to
service in cans, One incident is referred to in the Victeria Police comments that has apparently been
raised after the event, and with no context, It is entirely unclear whether this isolated incident would
have occurred regardless of whether alcohol was served in cans or otherwise.

Again, concerns raised by Victoria Police are due to historic incidents and without any regard to
current safety and management standards.

AOSMA's Security Manager recently attended a stadiums security forum. The sale and distribution of
cans was discussed, Adelaide Oval is currently the only major stadium in Australfia that has not been
granted approval for the use of cans (other than corporate areas). Consensus received from all
stadiums since the introduction of cans was that there have been no crowd behaviour issues arising
from service in cans.

We also note our understanding that other majar sporting and cultural events in South Australia
facilitate service of alcohol in cans, which events are of longer duration and with substantially greater
capacity than those conducted at Adelaide Oval. The potential use of cans as projectiles at those
events appear to have been well managed.

Alternatives and Government Support

22,

23.

24,
25,

28,

The Notice proposes alternative drink confainers, being biodegradabile piastic cups, and 'Draft Top’
cans. Whilst AOSMA appreciates the suggestions, unfortunately neither is an appropriate alternative
af this time.

Enquiries have been made of AOSMA's contracted supplier who has advised that 'Draft Top' cans are
not facilitated, and will not be in the foreseeabile future. We also note that AOSMA is considering the
potential for future sale of non-alcohalic (carbonated) soft drinks in cans.

In paragraphs [24] and [25] of our initial submission, we noted that the variation proposal enjoys State
Government support.

AQOSMA has recently received a letter from the Hon Susan Close MP, Deputy Premier and Minister
for Climate, Environment and Water, on 6 June 2022, Please see thal lelter enclosed.

Minister Close is supportive of the variation proposal and its environmental benefits.

Approach to Assessment

27.

Examples of prior incidents that have been raised are historic, isolated, with no context of
management practices in place at the time, and without regard to current alcohol management
standards. Service in cans in public areas has been successfully trialled at other major sporting
grounds in Australia, and already occurs in corporate, dining, recepticn and functions areas (including
apen boxes) at Adslaide Oval. No concern has been raised by any member of the public or Council
in respect to the Application.
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28. AGSMA is of the view that service of alcohol in cans presents no higher threat to safety than current

practices.

Howeaver, AOSMA is alsc willing to commit to the following to ensure the Commissioner

can be comfortable that appropriate measures will be in place to protect against any increased threat
to public safety arising from this Application:

a.

AQSMA is comfortable that its extensive current alcohol management practices
(including presence of security, SAPOL, CCTV monitoring, and responsible service
procedures) wili ensure that service of alcchal in cans can be effectively managed.

AOSMA is willing to commit to a 6 month trial period.

AOQOSMA will consult with the Commisisoner and SAPOL, who are welcome to raise
cancerns with AOSMA at any time during the trial, If raised, AOSMA commits to
addressing those concerns in co-operation with SAPOL and the Commissioner
proactively and in a timely manner.

The trial can of course be reviewsd at any time by the Commissicner should he be of the
view that is necessary.

ACSMA is comferiable that there are significant benefits to be gained from service of
alcohol in cans, including with respect to responsible service and management of crowd
behaviour,

Please contact the writer should you have any queries or wish to discuss.

Yours faithfully
MinterEllison

i

6(1)

Partner

6(1)
Contact; °@
6(1)

T: +61 8233 56562

aminterellison.com

OUR REF: 1387588

Copy:

sapol.licensingprosecution@police.sa.gov.au

Liquor and Gaming Commissioner | 12 July 2022 Page 4
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From: 2

Sent: Tuesday 21 June 2022 11:27:05 AM

To: a

Cc!

Subject: RE: Application for Variation of Conditions (Upgrade} - Adelaide Oval - axaio

[ME-ME.FID6836089]

. 8D

Hi

| can confirm that the proposed liquor license variation will not require any development
approval or variation to an existing approval. You may proceed without the need for any further
cohsent/approval from Council.

Kind regards,
Kosta

6(1)

Para Planner - Development Assessment
Development Assassment

4th Fleor 25 Pirie Street

Adelaide, South Australia, 5800
TEL:-+61882037357

F. +61882037575

E.6@ @cityofadelaide.com.au

Ten Gigabit
- Adelaide

8 g @

CiTY OF
‘| ADELAIDE

www cityofadelaide.com.au

Think before you print!

The contents of this e-mail are confidential and may be subject to privilege and copyright. This e-mall is intended
for the named recipient only and if you have received this e-mail in error please notify the City Of Adefaide
immediately on +61(8) 8203 7203. The views expressed in this e-mail are, unless otherwise stated, those of the
author and do not reflect the views, pollcy or position of the City of Adelaide and the City of Adelaide accepts no
responsibility for any such opinions, advice or infarmation.




P @minterellison.com>

From:
Sent: Monday, 20 June 2022 5:39 PM

To: Duty Planner <D.Planner@cityofadelaide.com.au>

cc:’® @minterellison.com>

Subject: RE: Application for Variation of Conditions (Upgrade) - Adelaide Oval - axaio [ME-

ME.FID6836089]

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear SirfMadam

We refer to the below email from Liguor and Gaming, Consumer and Business Services (CBS), on 26
May 2022, regarding a proposed liquor licence variation.

As indicated in the Notice of Application prepared by CBS, Adelaide Oval SMA Limited, as licensee of
liquor licence number 57102633, is seeking to vary the current licence condifion, being as follows:

. Liguor shali only be sold or suppiied in plastic cups, except in corporate facilities, dining rooms, or at
functions and receptions

to be revised as follows:

Liguor shalf only be sold or supplied in plastic cups or aluminium cans, except in corporate facifities, dining
rooms, or at functions and receptions

CBS requires Council's cenfirmation that the proposed licence variation does not require any
development approval or variation o a current development approval.

We are of the view that no further approval or variation is required.

Could ydu please confirm by return email that Council agrees with this position. We will then provide
Council’s response to CBS.

Kind regards,

6(1)

Lawyer

T +61 8 8233 5573

B @minterellison.com

MinterEllison 25 Grenfell Street Adelaide SA 5000
minterellison.com Follow us on Linkedin and Twitter




From: AGD;CBS Liguor and Gaming <LiguorAndGaming@sa.gov.au>

Sent: Thursday 26 May 2022 09:36 AM

To; @ @minterellison.com>

Cc: 'planning@cityofadelaide.com.au’ <planning@cityofadelaide.com.au>
Subject: Application for Variation of Conditions (Upgrade) - Adelaide Oval - axaio

OFFICIAL

! & City of Adelaide Coundil,

Good Marning B
Applicalion Number: 215930

This application is listed for determination on Monday 27 June 2022,
Please carefully read and fulfil Part 1 and Part 2 of this email

Part 1: Confirmation of councll planning and development approvals required

In order to grant yvour application, the licensing authority must be satisfied that all relevant
planning and development approvals under the Planning, Development and infrastructure Act
20146 have been obtained. Your application cannot proceed until we receive this confirmation
from City of Adelaide Council,

s City of Adelaide Councll Directions:

o To confirm if the proposed licence variation is covered by current Adelaide Oval
planning and development approvals, or whether any variation to the current DA
would be required,

Part 2: Posting your notice of application for the public
On or pbefore 27 May 2022 you must ensure that;
As set out in the Liquor Licensing Act 1997 and Regulations:
1. A Nofice of Application in A3 size must be prominently posted on the
* premises to which the application relates, or;
= if the premises has not been constructed, on the land on which it s proposed to

consiruct the premises

The Notice of Application is to be clearly visible to, and legikle by, persons passing the premises
or land.

The advertising schedute has been prepared by Consumer and Business Services as a service o
you. Itis your responsibifity as ihe applicant to ensure that the content of the advertisement(s)
accurately reflect your application,

You are further advised that gt least 7 days prior o the listed determination date, you must
lodge with this office the foillowing documents:




® Proof of advertising and notification in accordance with the Liquor Licensing Act 1997
and Regulations:

= Notice in writing of the date the Notice of Application was displayed

® Photograph/s showing the displayed Notice of Application. Photograph/s are to
be taken from a distance 1o clearly show the location of the displayed Notice
of Application on the premises in relation to the nearest public access point to
view the displayed notice (i.e. road or footpath). Photograph/s are 1o be
sharply focused, not blurred or unciear.

= Any other documents requested by the Liquor and Gambling Commissioner

Please note if these documents are not provided to this office seven days prior to the listed
determination date the application will be adjourned.

If your application is routine, 11 is likely a decision will be made on the determination date and
you should be noftified within ten business days. More complex applications may take longer to
determine. You can check the status of most applications online through LGO or by emailing
liquorandgaming@sa.gov.au.

For any queries relating to this application please contact me on 131 882,

Kind Regards

Antonelld | Senior Operations Gificer

Liquor & Gambling

Consumer and Business Services

?5 Grenfell Street, Adelaide ‘

Phone: 131 882 - menu opticn 5 | Website: www.cbs sa.gov.au

Aitorney-General's Department Disclaimer:

The Iinformation in this e-mail may be confidential and/or legally. privileged. It is infended solely
for the addressee. Access 1o this e-madil by anyone else is unauthorised. If you are not the
infended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or any action taken or omitted to be
faken inreliance onit, is prohibited and may be unlawful.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION, PLEASE READ

VACCINATED WORKPLACES
Only fully vaccinated {at least two doses of an approved COVID-19 vaccination) MinterEllison partners, staff, clients, suppliers,
and visitors can meet and work at our offices. By visiting our offices, you confirm you are fully vaceinated,

OTHER MATTERS



This email, including any attachments, is confidential and may be legatly privileged {and neither is waived or lost by mistaken
delivery). Please notify us if you have received this email in error and promptly delete it from your system. Any unauthorised use
of this email is expressly prohibited. Gur liabilily in connection with this email (inciuding due to viruses in any attachments) is
limited to re-supplying this email and its attachments. We collect personal information to provide and market our services and for
other purposes - please refer to our privacy policy for more information on how we collect and handle personal information.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION, PLEASE READ

MinterEllison respectfully acknowledges the Traditional Custodians on whose lands we live, work and learn. We offer our
respects to Elders past and present,

VACCINATED WORKPLACES
Only fully vaccinated {at least two doses of an approved COVID-19 vaccination) MinterEllison partuiers, staff, clients, suppliers,
and visilors can meet and work at our offices. By visiting our offices, you confirm you are fully vaccinated.

OTHER MATTERS

This email, including any attachments, is confidential and may be legaily privileged (and neither is waived or lost by mistaken
delivery). Please notify us if you have received this email in error and promptly delete it from your system. Any unauthorised use
of this email is expressly prohibited. Qur Hability in connection with this email (including due to viruses in any attachments) is
limited to re-supplying this email and its attachrnents. We collect personal information to provide and market our services and for
other purposes - please refer to our privacy policy for more information on how we coliect and handle personal information.

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

MinterElkison is commitied to keeping our people and communiiies safe and preventing the spread of COVID-19 and its variants.
Our offices are fully vaccinated workplaces. Only fully vaccinated partners and staff, clients, suppliers, contractors and vistfors
can meet and work at our offices. Read more for access procedures.

OTHER MATTERS

This email, including any attachments, is confidential and may be legally privileged (and neither is waived or lost by mistaken
delivery). Please notify us if you have received this email in error and promptly delete it from your system, Any unauthorised use
of this email is expressly prohibited, Our liability in connection with this email (including due to viruses in: any attachments) is
limited to re-supplying this email and its attachments. We collect persenal information to provide and market our services and for
other purposes - please refer (o our privacy policy for more information on how we collect and handle personal information.

Sensitive: Legal
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Government
BY: of South Australia

..............

Reference Number; CEW22/00378

The Hon Susan Close MP

Deoputy Promier

Minister for Climate, Environient and Water
FHaister for Industry, lnnovatibn and Science
Minister for Defence and Space Industrias
Lizeat 13, St Adminisoatior Cenun
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Chief Executive Officer 20 sari Square, Adelaile SA 000
Stadium Management AUthority Ejuzj:l:”if)lglzciili?:gput;Fw s g mse
PO Box 900 o
NORTH ADELAIDE SA 5001
By email:

6(1)
Dear

I write to you regarding the use of plastic cups at Adelaide OvaI.

Over the weekend | was pleased to learn the Melbourne Cricket Ground is currently
undertaking a trial of serving alcoholic beverages to customers in cans, rather than in
plastic cups, in a move to reduce the venue’s environmental footprint.

| know Adelaide Oval has been looking at ways to reduce the waste produced on
match days and was glad to read the Stadium Management Authority will closely
monitor the trial and consider implementing a similar program.

South Australia has always been a national leader in recycling and waste
management, which is why | would be very supportive of such a trial being undertaken
at our state's iconic sporting stadium.

! understand that Adelaide Oval's beer supplier, Lion, is also supportive of the move
and | strongly believe that patrons would be equally as eager to enjoy their beverages
straight from the can, and see the venue make an environmentally conscious switch.

Thank you for your consideration of this matter and | would greatly appreciate any
updates on Adelaide Oval’s plans to reduce waste.

Yours sincerely

Deputy Premier
Minister for Climate, Environment and Water

/21 12022






